
E/SR,798

798th Meeting

Tuesday, 6 July 1954
at 2.45 p.m.

PALAIS DES NATIONS, GENEVA

statement made by the United States representative in
the same sense.

3. Although useful work in the shape of technical
assistance and the focusing of attention on problems of .
social reform and economic development had been done
during the past eight years, the basic problems were as
far from solution as ever, and there was not even agree
ment on the major steps to be taken. Meanwhile, the
gulf between the prosperity of the developed and the
under-developed countries had widened as a result of
post-war economic reconstruction and the application of
modern techniques. Except for a brief period of two
years, the terms of trade had turned against the under
developed countries, threatening them with inflation and
a fall in real incomes and jeopardizing their development
programmes.
4. The problems facing the under-developed countries
were an inadequate flow of capital and an insufficient
and uncertain return for their raw materials in relation
to their import requirements. The problem of the
stabilization of commodity prices was not one for the
under-developed countries alone, but could seriously
affect the industrialized countries as well. A fall in
foreign exchange receipts inevitably led to a tightening
of import restrictions and the balancing of world trade
at a lower level. A vicious circle could thus be created
and lead to a depression affecting production and em
ployment everywhere. Such a situation could be mas
tered only by international co-operation based on the
realization that peace and prosperity were interdepen
dent, and that the world could not remain permanently
divided into prosperous and needy nations.
5. He welcomed the proposed unification of the Depart
ments of Economic and Social Affairs, with four sub
divisions to deal with economic and fiscal matters,
social affairs, statistics and human rights respectively.
In view of the importance of the Technical Assistance
Administration, the proposal to maintain it as a separate
unit at that stage was wise.
6. He was also in general agreement with the proposal
that the Council's summer and winter sessions should

. be shorter, and that they should be confined to major
items, although he hoped that that would not prevent
a full, frank and detailed discussion of the important
issues involved. His delegation would like the Fiscal
Commission to be continued, and the Economic, Employ
ment and Development Commission to be revived.
7. Opinion on the immediate establishment of the
Permanent Advisory Commission on International Com
modity Trade was sharply divided, although all delega
tions had expressed their sympathy with the broad
objectives of the proposal. One solution might be to
entrust the work to the Economic, Employment and

35

35

38

CONTENTS

President: Mr. Juan 1. COOKE (Argentina)

UNITED NATIONS

Jt/;.::'~J ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL
IWfJ IV) Eighteenth Session
~, .YJ1
~~ OFFICIAL RECORDS

Present:
The representatives of the following countries:

Argentina, Australia, Belgium, China, Cuba, Czecho
slovakia, Ecuador, Egypt, France, India, Norway,
Pakistan, Turkey, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics,
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland,
United States of America, Venezuela, Yugoslavia.

Observers from the following Member States: Brazil,
Costa Rica, Dominican Republic, Indonesia, Mexico,
Netherlands, Poland.

The representatives of the following specialized
agencies: International Labour Organisation, Food and
Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, United
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organiza
tion, International Monetary Fund.

Organization and operation of the Conncil and its
commissions and amendment of rnle 82 of the
rules of procedure of the Council (Council resolu
tions 414 (XIII), 442 (XIV), 443 (XIV), 445 I
(XIV), 512 A (XVII) and 530 (XVII), and General
Assembly resolntion 735 (VIII» (Ej2541 Ej2542,
Ej2598, Ej2623 and Add.l, Ej2625) (continuecl).

[Agenda Item 29J

1. Mr. Anwar ALl (Pakistan) welcomed the statement
made by the Secretary-General at the 796th meeting on
the reorganization of the Council and the aims of that
reorganization. The Council having been in existence
for eight years, the time was ripe for a review of its
organization and methods of work, and the Secretary
General's statement that the promotion of the economic
and social development of under-developed countries
would be the guiding principle in the elaboration of
programmes and projects within the Secretariat was
particularly welcome in that regard.
2. Unless by a co-operative effort prosperity was given
as broad a basis as possible, the attainment of peace
was bound to remain elusive. He welcomed the positive

:ons tendt1
t to do
impo

try
ler
ved
n itself!
: forgott~

ertaken 01 Page
;tory. 1'11. Organization and operation of the Council and its commis-
ittee WOUIJfu.'.·,.:...•..·.•.•.• sions and amendment of rule 82 of the rules of procedure

ll: of the Council (Council resolutions 414 (XIII), 44.2 (XIV).
delegatio~~' 443 (XIV), 445 I (XIV), 512 A (XVII) and 530 (XVII),

.ry-Generll, and General Assembly resolution 735 (VIII)) (E/2541.
~ E/2542, E/2598, E/2623 and Add.i. E/2625) (continued)

Non-governmental organizations (resumed from the 795t1l
meeting and concluded): Report of the Council Committee
on Non-Governmental Organizations (E/2628) . . . .

ubsequenl; .
:reat wiili~i

~'

I:
~'I

i'

I
w

t muchl~i
stage. k~

IS speakell~
he CouncU
j occurr~~.
oment, (oll~
under tw~t

: the Secr~l.
)eration oI~
III theM'!
nera!. Hu))
d be lellf

lcidentall) ."
3ecretarid

j:

~s.

t

)eration ol~
t' HUel lOn. ·W;

hear SOIlJ/~

;es. If ~Ii

)rtcomin. r~0'),

be remcm·li
Nays Iivei2
III fort~alii

prevaUinlf



---,,,,aking, th
'r' .
free in thelr
at the pres
~owever, cot
I~e regiona
would be a ~

lire and a s:
w. With r
been genera
and himself
was to be (
be possible t
rrovide the
un\ned syste
centralizatic
a process,
conndence I

be hurried,
and inner u
was one of i
all of whicl
and that tbl
quarters an I

issue which

jl), Anothl
been the ris
were based
arrangemell
universities
I~ough the,
tmth, were
Council tha
body wouk
and that th
caused by
other kind.

j\' Furth'
tion's respl
other bodie
at the 797t
and admin
He (the Se
been done \
lions. Prc

, ,ubject to c
aoubtedly]
was the dui
micuature

n. He 111
understanc

13. There
oltheeeoH
at lhe 797 t
IUillished c
(the Secret
motive for
lIIe prioritj
lalion was
diverting i
lIIiud was
lopment 0:
~art of tb

i
i

--
-

examining the problem before a final decision was taken'
His Government therefore gave a specific undertaking
that it would raise that question at the session of GATT
to be held in November 1954.

14. His Government had also recognized that there
was a strong body of opinion in the Council in favour
of the establishment of some machinery to examine the
question of the relationship between the prices of primary
products and industrial goods. His Government shared
the opinion of the experts as set out in their report
" Commodity Trade aT,ld Economic Development" that
it would not be useful to attempt to hold a fixed relation
ship between such prices. It would nevertheless be
prepared, provided other countries desired it, to see a
body established to look further at the problem. His
Government would also be prepared to serve on such
a body.

15. Those proposals did not imply the reversal or
rejection of resolution 512 A (XVII). They only consti
tuted a request to the Council to suspend implementation
of that resolution pending further examination of the
problem. He felt that the said proposals were more
advanced than those adopted at the seventeenth session
because they were more realistic. His delegation would
be prepared to embody them as a whole in a resolution
for consideration by the Economic Committee, to which
he formally proposed that the question should be referred.

16. Mr. HAMMARSKJOLD (Secretary-General) said
that it had been most helpful and encouraging to listen
to the general discussion and, although there seemed to
be a large measure of agreement on the major issues, he
felt that it might be useful to clarify a few points where
degrees of emphasis were of importance.

17. In the course of the discussion, attention had been
drawn to the dangers of an operation of the kind proposed,
and at the 797th meeting the Belgian representative had
drawn attention to the risk that rationalization might tend
to develop into centralization, with ensuing loss of inde
pendence for the specialized agencies. Centralization,
however, was misdirected rationalization Well-directed
rationalization would result in a wide delegation of powers,
always provided that a sound basis of unity of spirit
and aims had first been established. One of the major
aims of Headquarters was to define the precise lines to
be followed to ensure harmony with the aims and policies
of governments, so that it could be said that in a truly
liberal sense one common conviction was shared. Delega
tion of powers arising from such unity of spirit would, in
fact, broaden the scope of individual initiative.

18. With reference to the regional economic commis
sions, a recent meeting in New York with the executive
secretaries of the three commissions had, he felt, been
successful in establishing closer personal relations and
in laying a firm foundation for unified action. That
was his interpretation of the expression: integration of
the regional commissions with the Secretary-General.
It did not mean that the regional commissions were to
be put into a strait-jacket, but rather that they and
the Secretary-General should together form a tea~l

inspired by the same interest and working on the baSiS
of an analytical study of a situation. In a certain sense,
he could envisage a situation in which, organizationally

Economic and Social Council - Eighteenth Session36

Development Commission, which seemed to be more
directly concerned with the problem than the General
Agreement on Tariffs and Trade (GATTL to which some
delegations had proposed that the work ~e .del~gated.

That course would also avoid the multlphcatlOn of
specialized agencies.
8. His delegation reserved the right to make more
specific proposals at the appropriate time.
D. The success of the Council's efforts would be judged
essentially by the economic programmes undertaken for
study and implementation. Adequate attention should
be devoted to major fields, such as the flow of capital,
coupled with technical assistance and the establishment
of a special fund for economic development and. the
stabilization of commodity prices. Other sub] ects
certainly had their importance, but any scheme of
reorganization should keep those main objectives in the
forefront.

s
10. Sir Alec Ix.ANDALL (United Kingdom) said hi
Government attached particular importance to the
subject of the establishment of the Permanent Advisory
Commission on International Commodity Trade, which
had been decided by Council resolution 512 A (XVII).
In spite of considerable doubts about the wisdom of
the Council's decision, his Government had not sought
to evade its responsibility for a very careful examina tion
of the situation created by it.

11. Only 21 governments had so far submitted their
observations on the proposed commission, in response
to the invitation in the final paragraph of the resolution.
In a matter of such importance it was surely wise to
aim at a general consensus of considered opinion, and
the small number of replies received hardly constituted
a sufficient basis upon which to found further decisions
regarding the precise organization of the commission.
In view of the extraordinary complexity of the problems
raised by the Council's resolution, governments needed
time to formulate their comments. It was therefore
hardly surprising that no more replies had been received.
The need for mature consideration was fully recognized
in some of the replies already received, such as that of
the Netherlands Government (E/2623), in which it was
stated that that Government felt unable as yet to give
its views about its participation in the commission.

12. The reservations expressed by the Food and Agri
culture Organization should also be borne in mind.
That Organisation's Committee on Commodity Problems
had drawn attention in resolution No. 6 (23) (E/2625)
to the complicated problems of co-ordination which
would be created by the establishment of the com
mission.

13. It was against that background that the United
Kingdom Government had submitted its comments
(E/2(323). While recognizing that there was a strong
body of opinion in the Council in favour of permanent
machinery of some kind to deal with international
commodity problems and to encourage a greater effort
by States Members of the United Nations to lessen the
instability of prices of primary products, the United
Kingdom Government felt that such machinery could
be established to the best advantage under the auspices
0f GATT, which should have an opportunity of at least



798th Meeting - 6 July 1954

speaking, the reg~onal ~ommissions might be even more
free in their relattons wIth Headquarters than they were
at the present time. The members of the Council,
however, could count on the closest co-operation between
the regional commissions and Headquarters. That
would be a sound synthesis, combining individual initia
tive and a system of unification.
19. With regard to the specialized agencies, there had
been general agreement between their executive heads
and himself that any system of formalized hierarchy
was to be deprecated. On that level it should surely
be possible to establish relations which would in practice
provide the Council with all the advantages of a closely
unified system without any of the disadvantages of rigid
centralization. He must point out, however, that such
a process, which was based on a spirit of mutual
confidence directed towards common aims, could not
be hurried, for it involved the growth of a permanent
and inner unity. He was well aware that the problem
was one of interest and concern to many delegations, not
all of which were represented at the present meeting,
and that the relationship between United Nations Head
quarters and the specialized agencies was a controversial
issue which it was, perhaps, slightly temerarious to raise.

20. Another point mentioned in the discussion had
been the risk of the Organization, the activities of which
were based on the principle of universality, entering into
arrangements for the study of a particular problem with
universities or other research institutions whose horizons,
though they might be determined by the search after
truth, were less broad in scope. He could assure the
Council that any arrangement entered into with such a
body would be decided upon with complete objectivity,
and that there would be no risk whatsoever of distortion
caused by national considerations, or factors of any
other kind.

21. Further, there was the question of the Organiza
tion's responsibility in taking over certain tasks from
other bodies. The Belgian representative had referred
at the 797th meeting to arrangements for both research
and administrative studies in the domain of penal law.
He (the Secretary-General) could say that nothing had
been done which ran counter to the Organization's obliga
tions. Promises made at one juncture, however, must be
subject to circumstances. The organ concerned would un
doubtedly have adapted itself to new developments, and it
was the duty ofthe United Nations to preserve the dyna
mic nature of its work, since that was essential to progress.

22. He hoped that he had dispelled any possible mis
understandings about specific dangers.

23. There had also been references to the main purposes
of the economic and social work of the United Nations, and
at the 797th meeting the Soviet Union representative had
furnished a list of priorities with which, on the whole, he
(the.Secretary-General) would agree. That, indeed, was the
motIve for giving the under-developed countries program
me priority. He would stress, however, that such an orien
t~tion was not exclusive. There could be no question of
dl~erting interest from other problems. What he had in
ll1lnd was that when questions such as community deve
lopment or population problems were raised, in whatever
part of the world, it should be borne in mind that it

37

was more especially in the under-developed countries,
where governments were frequently unable to achieve
success, that international action was possible.

211. At tile Council's 79Gth meeting he had used the
phrase " common denominator", which seemed to him
to be particularly applicable in that context also. In
all the social and economic activities guided by the
Council a common denominator should be sought, but
it must be concrete, and not merely a vague abstraction
such as the social and economic well-being of peoples.
That concrete aspect should be the specific problem
represented by the under-developed countries, which
ought to be the guiding principle of the Organization's
activities in every sphere, including that of developed
countries, for-and he would revert to the order of
priorities proposed by the Soviet Union-it would be
found that neither the question of world trade, nor that
of the standard of living, nor the problem of unemploy
ment, could be adequately studied unless they were
related to specific situations in the under-developed
countries. That process was an essential clement of a
harmonious world economy. The question had been
asked whether he would initiate for the benefit of the
Council an annual statement setting out problems to be
tackled and progress achieved. If such a document
were to be of any value, its preparation would obviously
be a very difficult task, which, however, he would wel
come, regarding it as a challenge, and, should the Council
decide that it should be undertaken, it might well help
to concentrate the work of both the Council and the
Secretariat on certain main points upon which decisions
needed to be taken.

25. Finally, there was the difficult question of the
relation between economic and social policies and general
political issues. At the 796th meeting he had said that
the real basis for long-term development in the direction
of peace and security was the establishment of sound
economic and social conditions. There was, however,
an interplay between economic and social aspects on the
one hand, and political considerations on the other. In
the short run, politics entirely dominated the scene,
making it difficult to arrive at satisfactory conclusions
in economic and social matters. A vicious circle had in
fact been set up. Political problems took priority in
time; if no solution to them could be found, economic
and social questions were left unresolved, which, in turn,
created further political tensions. He would therefore
say, in reply to the Egyptian representative, that he
fully recognized the importance, both in time and in
significance, of the interplay between economic and
social factors and political issues. But he felt that too
often the publicity approach gave undue prominence to
political problems, thereby overshadowing economic and
social questions of great importance. At that moment,
the Council should have the foresight to take the neces
sary steps to avert future political tensions.

26. The PRESIDENT was sure he was voicing the
feeling of the Council in thanking the Secretary-General
for his statement, which displayed a firm intellectual
grasp of the situation, wisdom born of wide experience
and a strong sense [of the high responsibilities of his
office.



Economic and Social Council - Eighteenth Session
------------------':::....-_---------~-----

38

27. The question the Council had to decide was to
which committees the three points covered by the item
under discussion should be referred. He hoped that
the Egyptian representative would not press his proposal
that a. committee be set up to consider the first point
the organization and operation of the Council and its
commissions. He would suggest instead that the first
point be referred to the Co-ordination Committee and
the second to the Council Committee on Non-Govern
mental Organizations; as to the third, the Council had
heard the United Kingdom opinion that that was the
province of the Economic Committee.

28. Mr. MORALES (Argentina) pointed out that,
under resolution 512 A (XVII), the problems relating
to the establishment of the Permanent Advisory Com
mission on International Commodity Trade were due
for consideration by the Council. Though those prob
lems undoubtedly had their economic aspects, the
main question was one of organization, which fell quite
naturally within the competence of the Co-ordination
Committee. The Argentine delegation accordingly pro
posed that the latter committee be asked to consider
that question also.

.--------,-- "'--~-~--,-- --.-.--_.
PriDted ill Switzerla.nd

29. After an exchange of views, in which Mr. CORRERY
(Australia), Sir Alec RANDALL (United Kingdom)
Mr. AZMI (Egypt), Mr. HSIA (China), Mr. FENAUX
(Belgium) and Mr. SEN (India) took part, on the question
whether the Economic or the Co-ordination Committee
was the proper organ to consider the third point of the
item under discussion, the PRESIDENT suggested
that the first and the third points be referred to the
Co-ordination Committee and the second to the Council
Committee on Non-Governmental Organizations.

It was so agreed.

Non-governmental organizations (resumed from the
795th meeting and concluded): Report of the Coun.

cil Committee Oil Non-Governmental Organiza.
tiolls (E/2628)

[Agenda item 28J

30. Upon the invitation of the PRESIDENT, Mr,
FENAUX (Belgium), Acting Chairman of the Council
Committee on Non-Governmental Organizations, sub
mitted his Committee's report to the Council (E/2628).

The report was adopted unanimously.

The meeting rose at 4.15 p.m.

July 1954-1,525

I R

n;

I.
thl
thl

'ite
sit
gn
Or


